
 

AGENDA 
CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 

COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE MEETING 
MONDAY, JULY 06, 2020 

6:00 PM AT CITY HALL VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE 

 

 
 
To protect against the spread of the COVID-19, the meeting will be held via video conference. The public 
may access/participate in the meeting in the following ways: 
 
a) By dialing the phone number +13126266799 or +19292056099 or +12532158782 or +13017158592 or 
+13462487799 or +16699006833 and when prompted, enter the meeting ID (access code) 962 7287 1738. 
b) iPhone one-tap: +13126266799,,96272871738#  or +19292056099,,96272871738# 
c) Join via smartphone or computer using this link: https://zoom.us/j/96272871738.   
d) View the live stream on Channel 15 YouTube using this link: https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCCzeig5nIS-
dIEYisqah1uQ  (view only).  
e) Watch on Cedar Falls Cable Channel 15 (view only). 

 
To request to speak when allowed on the agenda, participants must click “Raise Hand” if connected by 
smartphone or computer, or press *9 if connected by telephone. All participants will be muted by the presiding 
officer when not actually speaking. 

1. Update on Potential Pool Partnership. 
(25 Minutes) 

2. Urban Chickens and Ducks. 
(20 Minutes) 

3. Bills & Payroll. 
(5 Minutes) 

1



City Meeting July 6, 2020 

 

 
Existing Public Pools 

 Peet & Holmes pools are 43 years old.  Avg Pool lasts approx 50 years 

o Dubuque pool collapsed last year at 50 yrs – community had no pool 

 Peet pool on the verge of closing in next 1-2 yrs 

 Peet & Holmes lack modern characteristics such as cool down/warm up areas, large staging 

deck, ADA compliant, separate secure entry, 8+ lanes, good air/water filtration 

 Current pools lack infrastructure for large meets; CFHS had to rent Linn-Mar pool to host 

MVC meet due to Holmes, Peet and UNI pool inadequacies 

 1998 there were 30 lap lanes in CF; 2020 there are 20 lap lanes (33% decline); closure of Peet 

will reduce lanes to 14 (53% decline); Of the 14 lanes remaining only 6 are for public usage. 

 CF rec study - #1 item community wanted was better aquatic facilitates 

 Since 1973 the women’s and men’s swim team has won 14 state titles; 2nd in state 6 times and 

3rd 7 times.  These teams have and placed 1st in conference 47 times and in the top 3 77 times.   

 

Impact of Peet closure 

 Severely strain scheduling capacity at Holmes 

 Eliminate programming – scuba, lap swim, club swim decline, life guard cert, rec swim 

 Elimination/decline of swim club=no feeder of lifeguards to the Falls Aquatic Center, no feeder 

to HS swim program 

 Crippling effect on all safety programs  

o Negatively affects training swim instructors & life guards 

o Reduce swimming lesson capacity 

o Students will no longer learn to swim in school  

o Increase downing risk 

 

Impact of new pool in community 

 Economic – Bring in 1,961 visitors and $912,000 revenue to community 

 Attract young families to the community 

 Utilization by community during school hours with secure independent entrance 

 Competing communities such as Cedar Rapids, Dubuque, Iowa City, Des Moines and Ames 

have all invested into their aquatic facilities in the last few years. 

 New programming – pool walk, aqua aerobics, kayaking, water polo, aqua trim, aqua therapy 

 Safety – swim lessons for all Cedar Falls students 

 Draw beyond CF area – next closest public pool east=Dubuque, north=Waverly, south=Cedar 

Rapids, west=Ft Dodge. CFHS pool will be swimming center for all surrounding communities 

– Oelwein, Dike, Denver, New Hartford, Hudson, Sumner, etc. The Falls has 58% non-

passholders many of which are non-residents. 

 

Collaboration possibilities 

 City – HS pool design with input from city. Per city request added separate 30’ by 75’ pool 

with dedicated temperature control for senior/toddler comfort; public entrance; 3-meter 

platform for recreation and UNI usage; training rooms for lifeguard cert & party rentals 

 UNI 

 Senior Centers – NewAldaya 

 Physical Therapy 

 Would be 1st project in CF where community, city and school have collaborated with monetary 

input from all 3 groups 

2

Item 1.



"Iq�+]]Y�$dd]gjk[Qjs����kYs�Ç��ÃÁÃÁ

+]Q[jh�qI�qQYY�<GGgIhh

Ɣ 7Ps�G]Ih�IG<g��<YYh�[IIG�<�[Iq�d]]Y�

Ɣ �Is�IYIZI[jh�]N�d]]Y�GIhQO[

Ɣ ]hj�<[G�]YY<D]g<jQpI�NQ[<[EQ[O

Ɣ 0QZQ[O

3

Item 1.



+]]Y�"IIG�Q[�IG<g��<YYh
Ɣ �[�[Irj�Æ�ÂÁ�sI<gh�qI�Z<s�[]j�P<pI�<[s�dkDYQE�Q[G]]g�d]]Yh�Q[����

ż 0q]�d]]Yh�D]jP�ÅÄ�sI<gh�]YG�<[G�[I<gQ[O�I[G�]N�YQNI�
ż +IIj�qQYY�EY]hI�Q[�[Irj�Â�Ä�sI<gh���/EP]]Y�[IIGh�hd<EI�N]g�EY<hhg]]Zh���+]]Y�<Yh]�Q[�

GQhgId<Qg�qQjP�Z<[s�pI[jQY<jQ][�<[G�]g�ZIEP<[QE<Y�dg]DYIZh��
Ɣ !]GIg[�Q[G]]g�d]]Y�Qh�<�[IEIhh<gs�d<gj�]N�<�pQDg<[j�E]ZZk[Qjs

ż �hhI[jQ<Y�N]g�q<jIg�h<NIjs��hqQZ�YIhh][h��YQNIOk<gG�EIgj��
ż .IEgI<jQ][�<[G�NQj[Ihh�N]g�<YY�<OIh�

Ɣ ]YY<D]g<jQ][�]dd]gjk[Qjs�
Ɣ �DQYQjs�j]�<jjg<Ej�pQhQj]gh�²�gIj<Q[�s]k[O�N<ZQYQIh

ż ��<YgI<Gs�<[�]kjYQIg�¥[IO<jQpI¦�

ż $dd]gjk[Qjs�j]�<jjg<Ej�Â�ÁÁÁÛ�pQhQj]g�N<ZQYQIh�<[[k<YYs

4

Item 1.



������������������

Ⱦɀ��������������������������
������������������
��������Ŝ������

�Is��YIZI[jh�]N�+]]Y��IhQO[

5

Item 1.



6

Item 1.



-k<YQjs�]N� QNI�$dd]gjk[QjQIh
Ɣ /dIEQ<Yjs�dg]Og<ZZQ[O�N]g�dI]dYI�qQjP�GQh<DQYQjQIh
Ɣ 7<jIg�d]Y]�
Ɣ �fk<�hdQ[[Q[O
Ɣ �fk<�jgQZ
Ɣ 7<jIg�;kZD<
Ɣ +]]Y�q<YXQ[O
Ɣ  <d�hqQZ
Ɣ /qQZ�YIhh][h
Ɣ /EkD<�EY<hhIh
Ɣ �<s<XQ[O�<[]IQ[O�
Ɣ  QNIOk<gG�q<jIg�h<NIjs�Q[hjgkEjQ][h�+.�NQghj�<QG�EY<hhIh
Ɣ �QpQ[O�YkD
Ɣ /qQZ�YkD
Ɣ 0gQ<jPYIjIh�EYkD
Ɣ �fk<�jPIg<ds�N]g�jP]hI�GI<YQ[O�qQjP�EPg][QE�PI<YjP�QhhkIh�hkEP�<h�<gjPgQjQh��+<gXQ[h][�h�

GQhI<hI��NQDg]Zs<YOQ<�<[G�W]Q[j�gIdY<EIZI[jh

7

Item 1.



]hj��]YY<D]g<jQpI��Q[<[EQ[O�²�0QZQ[O

]hj��k[GQ[O
�hjQZ<jIG�][hjgkEjQ][�E]hj�

¹Ê�¹ÂÆ�ZQYYQ][

Ɣ  Q[[�!<g�Þ�ÂÃ�ZQYYQ][

Ɣ �kDkfkI�Þ�É�Æ�ZQYYQ][

Ɣ �ZIh�Þ�¹ÂÃ�È�ZQYYQ][

]YY<D]g<jQpI�Nk[GQ[O�<ddg]<EP�[IIGIG

Ɣ /EP]]Y��QhjgQEj

Ɣ Qjs

Ɣ ]ZZk[Qjs�+PQY<[jPg]ds

Ɣ 1"�

8

Item 1.



]YY<D]g<jQpI��k[GQ[O�+g]d]h<Y
������������������������������� ȶɇ��������
���� ȶɂ��������
���������Ŋ


����� ȶɀ��������ũ
������� ȶɀ��������

������� ȶɀɂ��������

ũ����������������������������������������������������������
�����

�Zd<Ejh�]N�"Iq�+]]Y�j]�]ZZk[Qjs

Ɣ �IIdQ[O�]kg�E]ZZk[Qjs�E]ZdIjQjQpI�qQjP�E]Zd<g<DYI�E]ZZk[QjQIh
Ɣ .IpI[kIh�Ng]Z�[Iq�d]]Y�khI

ż �hjQZ<jIG�Â�ÊÇÂ�[kZDIg�]N�N<ZQYQIh�pQhQjQ[O�<gI<h�dIg�sI<g�¥hqQZ�ZIIjh¦
ż �hjQZ<jIG�IE][]ZQE�QZd<Ej�]N�jP]hI�hqQZ�ZIIjh�¹ÊÂÃ�ÁÁÁ
ż �QOP�/EP]]Y�<[G�� �/0�hqQZZIgh�Ng]Z�]jPIg�E]ZZk[QjQIh
ż �[EgI<hIG�d]]Y�d<hh�gIpI[kI

Ɣ .IOQ][<Y�EI[jIgdQIEI�N]g�q<jIg�<EjQpQjQIh
Ɣ �IpIY]dZI[j�]N�hdIEQ<Y�[IIGh�EkggQEkYkZ�Q[�E]YY<D]g<jQ][�qQjP�1"�

9

Item 1.



0QZQ[O��7Q[G]q�]N�$dd]gjk[Qjs
Ɣ "IIG

ż +IIj�EY]hkgI
Ɣ ]ZdIjQjQ][�N]g��k[Gg<QhQ[O

ż /d]gjhdYIr�dg]WIEj�][�P]gQv][
ż 0QZI�qQ[G]qh�N]g��g<[jh����+gQ]gQjQv<jQ][�]N��Y<EX��<qX��<ZQ[O�Nk[Gh

Ɣ �E][]ZQIh�]N�hE<YI
ż IG<g��<YYh�/EP]]Y�E][hjgkEjQ][�ÃÁÃÃ�ÃÁÃÅ
ż �I[INQEQ<Y�j]�DkQYG�h<ZI�jQZI�<h�[Iq���/

�ddI[GQr����GGQjQ][<Y��[N]

10

Item 1.



!]GIg[�+]]Y�P<g<EjIgQhjQEh�ph���+]]Yh
!]GIg[�+]]Yh ��+]]Yh
�É�Y<[Ih�]g�Z]gI �Ç�Y<[Ih

]]Y�G]q[�7<gZ�kd�<gI< []�E]]Y�G]q[�q<gZ�kd�<gI<

 <gOI�hj<OQ[O�GIEX�N]g�hqQZZIgh��E]<EPIh�
Ok<gGh��]NNQEQ<Yh

/Z<YY�hj<OQ[O�<gI<
�

 <gOI�I[jgs�<gI<�N]g�hdIEj<j]gh��pQhQj]gh��<GZQhhQ][h��E][EIhhQ][h� "]�GIhQO[<jIG�<gI<�N]g�<GZQhhQ][h�E][EIhhQ][h

/I<jQ[O�ÅÁÁ�ÆÁÁ�hdIEj<j]gh /I<jQ[O�ÄÆÁ�hdIEj<j]gh�<[G�YIhh�<j�+IIj

�]]G�<Qg�<[G�q<jIg�NQYjg<jQ][�hshjIZh +]]g�<Qg�<[G�q<jIg�NQYjg<jQ][

�EE]ZZ]G<jI�jP]hI�qQjP�GQh<DQYQjQIh
 QZQjIG�<EE]ZZ]G<jQ][h�qQjP�GQh<DQYQjQIh�<j��]YZIh�"]�hdIEj<j]gh�hI<jQ[O�qQjP�

GQh<DQYQjQIh

/Id<g<jI�I[jgs�j]�d]]Y�N]g�hIEkgQjs�<[G�h]�d]]Y�E<[�DI�khIG�Ds�dkDYQE�qPI[�[]j�Q[�
hEP]]Y�khI

"]�hId<g<jI�I[jgs

!]GIg[�hj<gjQ[O�DY]EXh $kjG<jIG� �[]�qIGOI�N]g�hj<gjh

/E]gID]<gG�qQjP�<jPYIjI�[<ZIh��IpI[j�[<ZI��pQGI] "]�<jPYIjI�[<ZIh��IpI[j�[<ZI��pQGI]��"]�hE]gID]<gG�<j�+IIj

7I�P<pI�<�d]]Y�E<d<EQjs�dg]DYIZ
�������������������������������Č��������������������

Ɣ /IpIgIYs�hjg<Q[�hEPIGkYQ[O�E<d<EQjs�<j��]YZIh

Ɣ �]YZIh�d]]Y�Z<s�[]j�Y<hj� ��kDkfkI�h�d]]Y�E]YY<dhIG�<j�ÆÁ�sgh

Ɣ gQddYQ[O�INNIEj�kd][�<YY�h<NIjs�²�hqQZZQ[O�dg]Og<Zh�Q[�IG<g��<YYh

ż .IGkEjQ][�]N�Q[G]]g�d]]Y�hd<EI�<NNIEjh�jg<Q[Q[O�]N�hqQZZQ[O�Q[hjgkEj]gh�²�YQNIOk<gGh��gIGkEIh�hqQZZQ[O�

YIhh][�E<d<EQjs��jPIgIN]gI��GIEgI<hIh�]pIg<YY�E]ZZk[Qjs�q<jIg�h<NIjs�<[G�Q[EgI<hIh�Gg]q[Q[O�gQhX

ż "IO<jQpIYs�<NNIEjh�d]]Y�jQZI�<p<QY<DYI�j]�Y]E<Y�hqQZ�jI<Z�j]�jg<Q[�<[G�GIpIY]d�hqQZZIgh�qP]�ZQOPj�Y<jIg�

DI�YQNIOk<gGh�N]g�jPI��<YYh��fk<jQE�EI[jIg�]g�/qQZ�Q[hjgkEj]gh

Ɣ .IEgI<jQ][<Y�<[G�Y<d�hqQZ�jQZI�Qh�YIhh�<p<QY<DYI�j]�jPI�E]ZZk[Qjs

Ɣ .IGkEIh�<DQYQjs�j]�P]hj�Y]E<Y�hqQZ�ZIIjh

Ɣ "IO<jQpI�QZd<Ej�][�]kg�PQOP�hEP]]Y�hqQZZQ[O�dg]Og<Z�����P<h�<�dg]kG�PQhj]gs�]N�IrEIYYI[j�hqQZZQ[O�qQ[[Q[O�

ÂÅ�hj<jI�EP<ZdQ][hPQdh�<[G�ÅÈ�E][NIgI[EI�jQjYIh��

11

Item 1.



"IqIg�+]]Yh�Q[�]jPIg�]ZZk[QjQIh
Ɣ  Q[[�!<g�d]]Y� �Ã�sI<gh�]YG��ÂÃ�ZQYYQ][�hj<[G�<Y][I�N<EQYQjs��/jgIjEP�ÃÆ�sG�d]]Y�q�É�

E]ZdIjQjQ][�Y<[Ih�²�Æ�Y<[I�E]]Y�G]q[�<gI<�ÈÆ��8�ÂÁÊ�

Ɣ �kDkfkI�d]]Y� ��kQYj�ÃÁÃÁ��É�Æ�ZQYYQ][�E][hjgkEjQ][� �Ê�Æ�q�h]Nj�E]hjh��/jgIjEP�ÃÆ�sG�d]]Y�q�

É�E]ZdIjQjQ][�Y<[Ih�²�Ç�Y<[I�E]]Y�G]q[�<gI<�ÈÆ��8�ÂÃÂ�Ç�

Ɣ �ZIh�d]]Y� �1[GIg�E][hjgkEjQ][��Ihj�ÂÃ�È�ZQYYQ][�E][hjgkEjQ][�� �ÂÆ�Ä�q�h]Nj�E]hjh��/jgIjEP�

ÃÆ�sG�d]]Y�q�É�E]ZdIjQjQ][�Y<[Ih�²�Æ�Y<[I�E]]Y�G]q[�<gI<�ÈÆ��8�ÂÂÆ�

Ɣ !<h][�Qjs� �"Iq�d]]Y�<h�d<gj�]N�¹ÄÈ!�QZdg]pIZI[j�j]�PQOP�hEP]]Y�Z]hjYs�<jPYIjQE�

N<EQYQjQIh�

Ɣ �Ih�!]Q[Ih�9!��7IYYZ<gX� �ÆÁ�ZIjIg�d]]Y�]dI[IG��ID�ÃÁÂÉ

+]]Yh�Q[�$jPIg�]ZZk[QjQIh� �E][j�G
Ɣ �]q<�Qjs�!IgEIg���ÆÁ�ZIjIg�d]]Y

Ɣ �gQ[[IYY�]YYIOI� �ÆÁ�ZIjIg�d]]Y��DkQYj�Q[�ÃÁÂÁ

Ɣ $jPIg�E]ZZk[QjQIh�Q[�jPI�<gI< �!<ghP<YYj]q[���]gj��]GOI���P<pI�DIjjIg�

d]]Yh��

Ɣ /]ZI�hZ<YYIg�E]ZZk[QjQIh�P<pI�[IqIg�d]]Yh� ��IE]g<P��gIhE]

12

Item 1.



$!!1"�09�+.$�.�!/��0�+��0
Ɣ .IEgI<jQ][<Y�/qQZ�][�/<jkgG<sh

ż ÆÁÁÛ�pQhQjh�<[[k<YYs
Ɣ �<gYs��QgG� <d�/qQZ��!7��Z]g[Q[Oh

ż ÃÂÁÁÛ�pQhQjh�<[[k<YYs
ż <[�j�DI�Z]pIG�j]��]YZIh�GkI�j]�PQOP�hEP]]Y�dg<EjQEIh�GkgQ[O�hEP]]Y�sI<g

Ɣ /EkD<�/k[G<sh��Ã[G�/k[G<s�Z][jPYs
ż ÂÆÁ�d<gjQEQd<[jh�<[[k<YYs
ż IgjQNQE<jQ][�<[G�gIEIgjQNQE<jQ][�N]g�hEkD<��h[]gXIYQ[O��GIId�hI<�gIhEkI��<[G�

hEkD<�Q[hjgkEjQ][

$!!1"�09�+.$�.�!/��0�+��0
Ɣ /qQZZQ[O� Ihh][h

ż ÃÅÁ�<[[k<Y�d<gjQEQd<[jh�GkgQ[O�Æ�qIIX�dg]Og<Z�¥!<gEP��dgQY¦

Ɣ  QNIOk<gG�IgjQNQE<jQ][
ż ÃÆ�<[[k<Y�EIgjQNQE<jQ][h�dYkh�ÂÁ�ÂÆ�<[[k<Y�gIEIgjQNQE<jQ][h

Ɣ �<YYh��fk<jQE�I[jIg�/XQYYh�0g<Q[Q[O
ż ÂÄÁ�d]jI[jQ<Y�hj<NN�<[[k<YYs

13

Item 1.



7�0�.�/���09��!+�0
Ɣ�]YZIh�+]]Y�E<[[]j�<EE]ZZ]G<jI�<YY�]N�jPIhI�E]ZZk[Qjs�dg]Og<Zh

Ɣ ÂÆÁÁ�NIqIg�EPQYGgI[�j<XI�hqQZZQ[O�YIhh][h�IpIgs�sI<g

Ɣ  Ihh�]dd]gjk[Qjs�j]�jg<Q[�YQNIOk<gGh�<[G�jIhj�hj<NN�j]�I[hkgI�h<NIjs�<j�jPI��<YYh

Ɣ  Ihh�d]]Y�<p<QY<DQYQjs�ZI<[h�Z]gI�hqQZZQ[O�Q[�k[h<NI�dY<EIh

]ZdIjQjQpI�/qQZZQ[O�<j�+IIj
Ɣ � �/0

ż �ddg]rQZ<jIYs�ÃÁÁ�hqQZZIgh�Ng]Z�<OI�Ç�jPg]kOP�PQOP�hEP]]Y
ż Ê�ÃÁÁ�<[[k<Y�pQhQjh�¥hkZZIg�<[G�qQ[jIg�dg<EjQEIh¦
ż �]YZIh�E<[[]j�<EE]ZZ]G<jI�� �/0�dg<EjQEIh

Ɣ 1//��Ihjg]sIgh
ż ÃÆ�hqQZZIgh
ż Â�ÃÆÁ�<[[k<Y�pQhQjh�¥hEP]]Y�P]YQG<sh�<[G�hkZZIgh¦

Ɣ /kEEIhhNkY�PQOP�hEP]]Y�hqQZZQ[O�dg]Og<Zh�Q[EgI<hQ[OYs�NI<jkgI
ż /qQZZIgh�qP]�jg<Q[�sI<g�g]k[G
ż 1d�j]�G<jI�N<EQYQjQIh

14

Item 1.



/j<jQhjQEh
Ɣ /qQZZQ[O�Qh�jPI�N]kgjP�Z]hj�d]dkY<g�gIEgI<jQ][<Y�<EjQpQjs�Q[�jPI�1[QjIG�

/j<jIh���1�/��"]��Â�Qh�q<YXQ[O��"]��Ã�hd]j�O]Ih�j]�IrIgEQhQ[O�qQjP�IfkQdZI[j�
<[G�ÄgG�gk[[Q[O��<EE]gGQ[O�j]�jPI�1�/��I[hkh��kgI<k�

Ɣ /qQZZQ[O�Qh�jPI�Z]hj�d]dkY<g�gIEgI<jQ][<Y�<EjQpQjs�N]g�EPQYGgI[�<[G�jII[h�
¥<OIh�È�ÂÈ¦��

Ɣ /qQZZQ[O�Qh�<�YQNIY][O�hd]gj����[�jPI�1[QjIG�/j<jIh�GkgQ[O�ÃÁÁÊ��jPIgI�qIgI�
<ddg]rQZ<jIYs�ÄÁÂ�ZQYYQ][�hqQZZQ[O�pQhQjh�I<EP�sI<g�Ds�dIgh][h�]pIg�jPI�<OI�
]N�hQr��

Ɣ 0PQgjs�hQr�dIgEI[j�]N�EPQYGgI[�<OIG�È�ÂÈ�sI<gh��<[G�ÂÆÚ�]N�<GkYjh�Q[�jPI�
1[QjIG�/j<jIh��hqQZ�<j�YI<hj�hQr�jQZIh�dIg�sI<g�

Ɣ !]GIg[��jPgQpQ[O�<[G�<jjg<EjQpI�E]ZZk[QjQIh�P<pI�O]]G�Q[G]]g�d]]Yh

/j<jQhjQEh�][jQ[kIG
Ɣ �g]Z�ÃÁÁÆ�ÃÁÂÅ��jPIgI�qIgI�<[�<pIg<OI�]N�Ä�ÆÄÇ�N<j<Y�k[Q[jI[jQ][<Y�Gg]q[Q[Oh�¥[][�D]<jQ[O�gIY<jIG¦�<[[k<YYs�Q[�

jPI�1[QjIG�/j<jIh�¡�<D]kj�jI[�GI<jPh�dIg�G<s���[�<GGQjQ][<Y�ÄÄÃ�dI]dYI�GQIG�I<EP�sI<g�Ng]Z�Gg]q[Q[O�Q[�
D]<jQ[O�gIY<jIG�Q[EQGI[jh�

Ɣ �D]kj�][I�Q[�NQpI�dI]dYI�qP]�GQI�Ng]Z�Gg]q[Q[O�<gI�EPQYGgI[�ÂÅ�<[G�s]k[OIg���]g�IpIgs�EPQYG�qP]�GQIh�Ng]Z�
Gg]q[Q[O��<[]jPIg�NQpI�gIEIQpI�IZIgOI[Es�GId<gjZI[j�E<gI�N]g�[][N<j<Y�hkDZIghQ][�Q[WkgQIh�

Ɣ !]gI�jP<[�ÆÁÚ�]N�Gg]q[Q[O�pQEjQZh�jgI<jIG�Q[�IZIgOI[Es�GId<gjZI[jh�¥��h¦�gIfkQgI�P]hdQj<YQv<jQ][�]g�jg<[hNIg�N]g�
NkgjPIg�E<gI�¥E]Zd<gIG�qQjP�<�P]hdQj<YQv<jQ][�g<jI�]N�<D]kj�ÇÚ�N]g�<YY�k[Q[jI[jQ][<Y�Q[WkgQIh¦�0PIhI�[][N<j<Y�
Gg]q[Q[O�Q[WkgQIh�E<[�E<khI�hIpIgI�Dg<Q[�G<Z<OI�jP<j�Z<s�gIhkYj�Q[�Y][O�jIgZ�GQh<DQYQjQIh�hkEP�<h�ZIZ]gs�
dg]DYIZh��YI<g[Q[O�GQh<DQYQjQIh��<[G�dIgZ<[I[j�Y]hh�]N�D<hQE�Nk[EjQ][Q[O�¥I�O���dIgZ<[I[j�pIOIj<jQpI�hj<jI¦�

Ɣ PQYGgI[��PQYGgI[�<OIh�Â�j]�Å�P<pI�jPI�PQOPIhj�Gg]q[Q[O�g<jIh���[�ÃÁÂÅ��<Z][O�EPQYGgI[�Â�j]�Å�sI<gh�]YG�qP]�GQIG�
Ng]Z�<[�k[Q[jI[jQ][<Y�Q[Wkgs��][I�jPQgG�GQIG�Ng]Z�Gg]q[Q[O���g]q[Q[O�Qh�gIhd][hQDYI�N]g�Z]gI�GI<jPh�<Z][O�
EPQYGgI[�Â�Å�jP<[�<[s�]jPIg�E<khI�IrEIdj�E][OI[Qj<Y�<[]Z<YQIh�¥DQgjP�GINIEjh¦���Z][O�jP]hI�Â�ÂÅ��N<j<Y�Gg]q[Q[O�
gIZ<Q[h�jPI�hIE][G�YI<GQ[O�E<khI�]N�k[Q[jI[jQ][<Y�Q[Wkgs�gIY<jIG�GI<jP�DIPQ[G�Z]j]g�pIPQEYI�Eg<hPIh�

Ɣ !Q[]gQjQIh���IjqII[�ÂÊÊÊ�ÃÁÂÁ��jPI�N<j<Y�k[Q[jI[jQ][<Y�Gg]q[Q[O�g<jI�N]g��NgQE<[��ZIgQE<[h�q<h�hQO[QNQE<[jYs�
PQOPIg�jP<[�jP<j�]N�qPQjIh�<Eg]hh�<YY�<OIh��0PI�GQhd<gQjs�Qh�qQGIhj�<Z][O�EPQYGgI[�Æ�ÂÉ�sI<gh�]YG��0PI�GQhd<gQjs�Qh�
Z]hj�dg][]k[EIG�Q[�hqQZZQ[O�d]]Yh���NgQE<[��ZIgQE<[�EPQYGgI[�Æ�ÂÊ�Gg]q[�Q[�hqQZZQ[O�d]]Yh�<j�g<jIh�Æ�Æ�jQZIh�
PQOPIg�jP<[�jP]hI�]N�qPQjIh��0PQh�GQhd<gQjs�Qh�OgI<jIhj�<Z][O�jP]hI�ÂÂ�ÂÃ�sI<gh�qPIgI��NgQE<[��ZIgQE<[h�Gg]q[�Q[�
hqQZZQ[O�d]]Yh�<j�g<jIh�ÂÁ�jQZIh�jP]hI�]N�qPQjIh�

Ɣ !<[s�<GkYjh�<[G�EPQYGgI[�gId]gj�jP<j�jPIs�E<[�j�hqQZ��.IhI<gEP�P<h�hP]q[�jP<j�d<gjQEQd<jQ][�Q[�N]gZ<Y�hqQZZQ[O�
YIhh][h�E<[�gIGkEI�jPI�gQhX�]N�Gg]q[Q[O�<Z][O�EPQYGgI[�<OIG�Â�j]�Å�sI<gh�

15

Item 1.



 Q[[�!<g�+]]Y

�kDkfkI�+]]Y

16

Item 1.



]hj�/P<gQ[O�N]g�+IIj�<[G��]YZIh
Ɣ �[QjQ<Y�DkQYG�E]hj�]N�¹Â�Â�ZQYYQ][�N]g�D]jP�d]]Yh���

ż Qjs�E][jgQDkjIG�<ddg]rQZ<jIYs�ÂÁÚ

ż /EP]]Y��QhjgQEj�Nk[GIG�jPI�gIhj

Ɣ ÃÉ���OgIIZI[j�O]pIg[h�hP<gQ[O�]N�<[[k<Y�]dIg<jQ][<Y�E]hjh�

ż Qjs�d<sh�ÅÆÚ�]N�][O]Q[O�d]]Y�IrdI[hIh�¥kjQYQjQIh��hkddYQIh��Q[hkg<[EI��<[G�hEP]]Y�dIgh][[IY�
jQZI�<[G�E]hjh�N]g�Z<Q[jI[<[EI��kdXIId��<[G�gId<Qg¦

ż ÃÁÂÊ�j]j<Y�]dIg<jQ][<Y�IrdI[hI�¹ÊÃ�ÁÁÁ�¥ÅÆÚ�hP<gI�Þ�¹ÅÂ�ÁÁÁ¦

ż /EP]]Y�dIgh][[IY�jQZI�GIp]jIG�j]�XIIdQ[O�d]]Yh�]dIg<jQ[O�P<h�Q[EgI<hIG�Gg<Z<jQE<YYs�Q[�Y<hj�Ä�
sI<gh����g]Z�ÃÁÁÁ�ÃÁÂÇ��<pIg<OI�<[[k<Y�jQZI�q<h�ÂÉÃ�P]kgh����IOQ[[Q[O�Q[�ÃÁÂÈ��<[[k<Y�jQZI�
WkZdIG�j]�]pIg�ÄÁÁ�P]kgh��<pIg<OQ[O�ÄÄÆ�P]kgh���

Ɣ �[�<GGQjQ][��EQjs�d<sh�ÂÁÁÚ�]N�EQjs�dg]Og<Z�E]hjh�<j�+IIj�<[G��]YZIh�¥Q[hkg<[EI��EYI<[Q[O��
YQNIOk<gGQ[O�<[G�hj<NN�IrdI[hIh¦�<[G�Nk[Gh�jPI��fk<jQEh��QgIEj]g�d]hQjQ][

ÃÁÃÁ�ÃÁÃÂ��jPYIjQE�/P<gQ[O��OgIIZI[jh
Ɣ �]g�/qQZZQ[O�¥!I[�h��7]ZI[�h��]g�D]jP¦�

ż �dYQ[Oj][�+<gXIghDkgO
ż �I[pIg
ż �QXI�"Iq��<gjN]gG
ż �k[XIgj][
ż �kGh][
ż �[GIdI[GI[EI
ż �<[IhpQYYI
ż $IYqIQ[
ż /kZ[Ig��gIGIgQEXhDkgO
ż 7<pIgYs�/PIYYg]EX
ż 6<YYIs� kjPIg<[

17

Item 1.



DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 

City of Cedar Falls 
220 Clay Street 
Cedar Falls, Iowa 50613 
Phone: 319-273-8600 
Fax: 319-273-8610 
www.cedarfalls.com 

 

MEMORANDUM 

Administration Division 

  

  

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 TO: Mayor Rob Green and City Council 

 FROM: Stephanie Houk Sheetz, AICP, Director of Community Development 

 DATE: June 30, 2020 

 SUBJECT: Urban Chickens and Ducks 
 
 
In 2006, City Council passed Ordinance 2607 including chickens in a list of agricultural 
animals and specifying they are only allowed in the A-1 district.  Any non-agriculturally 
zoned property with chickens was prohibited at that time.  Residences with chickens at 
the time were allowed to continue, provided the use was continuous and specific to that 
property.   These amendments occurred within Chapter 6, Animals of the Cedar Falls 
Code of Ordinances. 
 
In 2016, Council referred the keeping of chickens to a Committee of the Whole 
discussion.  The result was a motion to direct staff to develop an ordinance allowing up 
to three chickens (hens only), keeping them in an enclosed structure and fenced pen at 
least 25 feet from any other dwelling, obtaining a land use permit for the structure/pen, 
and allowing the use in the back yard area only.  The ordinance did not pass when 
considered in November 2016. 
 
In 2018, Council referred the keeping of chickens to a Committee of the Whole 
discussion.  The Council motioned to direct staff to develop an ordinance allowing 
chickens (hens only) and ducks in residential districts, a limit of three animals, keeping 
them in an enclosed structure and fenced pen at least 25 feet from any other dwelling, 
allowing the use in the back yard area only, and a termination clause for public health 
reasons.  The ordinance was not approved when considered in September 2018.  This 
seemed to be due to concern about licensing rather than a land use permit. 
 
Council recently referred the keeping of chickens to a Committee of the Whole 
discussion.  Enclosed is a presentation staff will cover at the July 7th meeting. 
 
Staff’s recommendation is the same as presented in 2018: start by allowing only a few 
chickens/ducks and license the animals.  Requiring a license rather than a land use 
permit keeps regulations similar to those of other small animals kept in small numbers 
for personal use. 

18

Item 2.



 
Land use permits apply to significant improvements that are more permanent in nature 
such as a new home, additions, decks, swimming pools, fences (due to easements and 
utilities), driveways, and large sheds.  Sheds 120 square feet or less do not need a land 
use permit.  Should a proposed structure for chickens/ducks exceed 120 square feet, 
then it would be subject to a land use permit.  However, it is anticipated that a coop and 
run for up to three chickens would be around 40 square feet.1  In the license application, 
staff could verify the location of the coop and fenced pen regardless of its size. 
 
Staff will be seeking a motion from Council, on whether to proceed with an ordinance to 
allow the keeping of chickens and ducks. 
 
 
 
xc: Karen Howard, Planning & Community Services Manager 
 

                                                           
1 https://www.dummies.com/home-garden/hobby-farming/raising-chickens/how-to-determine-your-flock-
size-and-space-
requirements/#:~:text=The%20minimum%20rule%20of%20thumb,pecking%2C%20and%20sometimes%
20even%20death. 

19

Item 2.

https://www.dummies.com/home-garden/hobby-farming/raising-chickens/how-to-determine-your-flock-size-and-space-requirements/
https://www.dummies.com/home-garden/hobby-farming/raising-chickens/how-to-determine-your-flock-size-and-space-requirements/
https://www.dummies.com/home-garden/hobby-farming/raising-chickens/how-to-determine-your-flock-size-and-space-requirements/
https://www.dummies.com/home-garden/hobby-farming/raising-chickens/how-to-determine-your-flock-size-and-space-requirements/


Urban Chickens and Ducks

Council Committee Meeting

June 30, 2020

20

Item 2.



Urban Chickens and Ducks
2016 Ordinance Research

City Allows Chickens Number Allowed Approval Process

Davenport/Waukee/

Coralville/Cedar Falls/W. 

DSM/Ankeny/Urbandale

No N/A N/A

Iowa City Yes 4 Permit

Sioux City Yes 4 Permit

Waterloo Yes No limit Permit by BOA

Dubuque/Ames Yes No limit None

Clive Yes 12 None

Marion Yes 6 Permit

Johnston Yes 2 Lot > 20,000 sf

Des Moines Yes 30-50 based on lot size None

Cedar Rapids Yes 6 Permit

Council Committee

June 30, 2020 21

Item 2.



Urban Chickens and Ducks
Previous Discussion

Council Committee

June 30, 2020

• Council Committee discussion on August 20, 2018

• Staff recommended forwarding an ordinance with the following general 

standards:

• Three chickens (hens) and/or ducks

• Kept in a clean, sanitary and enclosed structure

• 25-foot separation from neighboring residential dwellings

• Allowed in residential (R) zoning districts

• Backyard area only

• Termination of chickens for health reasons

22

Item 2.



Urban Chickens and Ducks
License

Council Committee

June 30, 2020

Sec. 6-44. - License required for dogs and cats.

The owners of all dogs and cats four months old or older shall annually obtain 

a license therefore as provided in this article.

(Code 2017, § 6-42; Ord. No. 2223, § 2, 3-23-1998)

23

Item 2.



Urban Chickens and Ducks
Coop and Fenced Pen

Council Committee

June 30, 2020

The minimum rule of thumb is about 2 to 3 square feet per chicken inside 

the chicken coop, and 8 to 10 square feet per chicken in an outside run. 

More square footage is better. Skimping on space requirements for a flock 

of chickens can cause stress, cannibalism, pecking, and sometimes even 

death.
Dummies, Home & garden topics

If 3 chickens: 9 sq. ft. (coop), 30 sq. ft (run) = 40 sq. ft.

24

Item 2.

https://www.dummies.com/home-garden/hobby-farming/raising-chickens/how-to-determine-your-flock-size-and-space-requirements/#:~:text=The%20minimum%20rule%20of%20thumb,pecking%2C%20and%20sometimes%20even%20death.


18 3/4 square feet

Council Committee

June 30, 2020

Urban Chickens and Ducks
Coop and Fenced Pen Examples

25

Item 2.



16 2/3 square feet

Council Committee

June 30, 2020

Urban Chickens and Ducks
Coop and Fenced Pen Examples

26

Item 2.



48 square feet
Council Committee

June 30, 2020

Urban Chickens and Ducks
Coop and Fenced Pen Examples

27

Item 2.



Urban Chickens and Ducks
Recommended Motion

Council Committee

June 30, 2020

Draft an ordinance with the following general standards:

a. Three chickens (hens) and/or ducks, to be licensed annually

b. Kept in a clean, sanitary and enclosed structure

c. 25-foot separation from neighboring residential dwellings

d. Allow in residential (R) zoning districts

e. Backyard area only

f. Termination of chickens for health reasons

28

Item 2.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



31

Item 3.



32

Item 3.



33

Item 3.



34

Item 3.



35

Item 3.



36

Item 3.



37

Item 3.



38

Item 3.



39

Item 3.



40

Item 3.



41

Item 3.



42

Item 3.



43

Item 3.



44

Item 3.



45

Item 3.



46

Item 3.



47

Item 3.



48

Item 3.



49

Item 3.



50

Item 3.



51

Item 3.



52

Item 3.



53

Item 3.



54

Item 3.



55

Item 3.



56

Item 3.



57

Item 3.



58

Item 3.



59

Item 3.



60

Item 3.



61

Item 3.



62

Item 3.



63

Item 3.



64

Item 3.



65

Item 3.



66

Item 3.



67

Item 3.



68

Item 3.



69

Item 3.



70

Item 3.



71

Item 3.



72

Item 3.



73

Item 3.



74

Item 3.



75

Item 3.



76

Item 3.



77

Item 3.



78

Item 3.



79

Item 3.



80

Item 3.



81

Item 3.



82

Item 3.



83

Item 3.



84

Item 3.



85

Item 3.



86

Item 3.



87

Item 3.



88

Item 3.



89

Item 3.



90

Item 3.


	Top
	1.	Update on Potential Pool Partnership
	1. City summary 7.6.20
	2. City presentation 7.6.20

	2.	Urban Chickens and Ducks
	1. memo on chickens 6-30-20
	2. Chicken ordinance presentation-Council Committee 7-6-20

	3.	Bills
	1 Daily Invoices 070620
	2 Council Invoices 070620

	Bottom

